
Page 1

COUNCIL MEETING

10 April 2019

COUNCIL MINUTE BOOK
1.  Council - 25 February 2019 (Pages 3 - 6)

2.  Council - 27 February 2019 (Pages 7 - 24)

3.  Executive - 25 February 2019 (Pages 25 - 28)

4.  Executive - 19 March 2019 (Pages 29 - 34)

5.  Planning Applications Committee - 7 March 2019 (Pages 35 - 44)

6.  Planning Applications Committee - 4 April 2019 (to be 
laid on the table) 

7.  Performance & Finance Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 
2019 

(Pages 45 - 50)

8.  Audit & Standards Committee - 25 March 2019 (Pages 51 - 54)

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes\Council\25 February 2019

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF SURREY 
HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL held at 
Surrey Heath House, Camberley on 
25 February 2019 

- Cllr Dan Adams  (Mayor)
+ Cllr Robin Perry (Deputy Mayor)

+
+
+

+
+
+
+
-
+
-
+
-
-
-
+
+
+
-

Cllr David Allen
Cllr Rodney Bates
Cllr Richard Brooks
Cllr Nick Chambers
Cllr Bill Chapman
Cllr Mrs Vivienne Chapman
Cllr Ian Cullen
Cllr Paul Deach
Cllr Colin Dougan
Cllr Craig Fennell
Cllr Surinder Gandhum
Cllr Moira Gibson
Cllr Edward Hawkins
Cllr Josephine Hawkins
Cllr Ruth Hutchinson
Cllr Paul Ilnicki
Cllr Rebecca Jennings-Evans
Cllr David Lewis
Cllr Oliver Lewis

+
+
+

+
+
-
+
+

-
+
+
+
-
+
-
+
+

Cllr Jonathan Lytle
Cllr Katia Malcaus Cooper
Cllr Bruce Mansell
Cllr David Mansfield
Cllr Charlotte Morley
Cllr Alan McClafferty
Cllr Max Nelson
Cllr Adrian Page
Cllr Chris Pitt
Cllr Joanne Potter
Cllr Nic Price
Cllr Wynne Price
Cllr Darryl Ratiram
Cllr Ian Sams
Cllr Conrad Sturt
Cllr Pat Tedder
Cllr Victoria Wheeler
Cllr Valerie White
Cllr John Winterton

+  Present
-  Apologies for absence presented

49/C Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of the Mayor and Councillors 
Colin Dougan, Surinder Gandhum, Edward Hawkins, Josephine Hawkins, Ruth 
Hutchinson, Oliver Lewis, Max Nelson, Nic Price, Conrad Sturt and Victoria 
Wheeler.

50/C Suspension of Council Procedure Rules

It was moved by the Deputy Mayor, seconded by the Leader and

RESOLVED that Council Procedure Rules 14.5 (length of speech), 
14.6 (councillors speaking more than once), and 21.2 (the 
requirement to stand), be suspended for the meeting in order to 
allow for freer debate.

Page 3

Agenda Item 1. 



Minutes\Council\25 February 2019

51/C Exclusion of Press and Public

In accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public were excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the ground that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
the paragraphs of Part 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act as set out below:

Minute Paragraphs

52/C 3
53/C 3

Note: Minute 52/C is a summary of matters considered in Part II of the agenda, the 
minutes of which it is considered should remain confidential at the present time.

52/C London Road Development

The Council made decisions in relation to the London Road Development.

Note 1: It was noted for the record that the Mayor had declared a 
disclosable pecuniary interest as he rented an office in the site area and 
had therefore absented himself from the meeting.

53/C Review of Exempt Items

The Council reviewed the items which had been considered at the meeting 
following the exclusion of members of the press and public as they involved the 
likely disclosure of exempt information.

RESOLVED that 

(i) the decision at minute 52/C remain exempt until the end of 
the standstill and challenge period; and

(ii) all financial and contractual information to remain exempt 
for the present time.

Mayor 

Page 4



Document is Restricted

Page 5

By virtue of 
Regulation 21(1)(A) of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000.



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF SURREY 
HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL held at 
Surrey Heath House, Camberley on 
27 February 2019 

+ Cllr Dan Adams (Mayor)
+ Cllr Robin Perry (Deputy Mayor)

-
+
+

+
+
-
+
-
+
-
+
-
-
-
+
+
+
-

Cllr David Allen
Cllr Rodney Bates
Cllr Richard Brooks
Cllr Nick Chambers
Cllr Bill Chapman
Cllr Mrs Vivienne Chapman
Cllr Ian Cullen
Cllr Paul Deach
Cllr Colin Dougan
Cllr Craig Fennell
Cllr Surinder Gandhum
Cllr Moira Gibson
Cllr Edward Hawkins
Cllr Josephine Hawkins
Cllr Ruth Hutchinson
Cllr Paul Ilnicki
Cllr Rebecca Jennings-Evans
Cllr David Lewis
Cllr Oliver Lewis

+
+
-
+
-
+
-
+
+
+
+
+
+
+
-
+
+
+
+

Cllr Jonathan Lytle
Cllr Katia Malcaus Cooper
Cllr Bruce Mansell
Cllr David Mansfield
Cllr Charlotte Morley
Cllr Alan McClafferty
Cllr Max Nelson
Cllr Adrian Page
Cllr Chris Pitt
Cllr Joanne Potter
Cllr Nic Price
Cllr Wynne Price
Cllr Darryl Ratiram
Cllr Ian Sams
Cllr Conrad Sturt
Cllr Pat Tedder
Cllr Victoria Wheeler
Cllr Valerie White
Cllr John Winterton

+  Present
-  Apologies for absence presented

54/C Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors David Allen, Ian 
Cullen, Colin Dougan, Surinder Gandhum, Edward Hawkins, Josephine Hawkins, 
Oliver Lewis, Bruce Mansell, Max Neson and Conrad Sturt.

55/C Minutes

It was moved by the Mayor, seconded by the Deputy Mayor, and 

RESOLVED that the open and exempt minutes of the meeting of 
the Council held on 12 December 2018 and 30 January 2019 be 
approved as a correct record.

56/C Mayor's Announcements

The Mayor reported on his visits to the emergency services during the Christmas 
period and informed Members he had had the privilege of meeting the first baby 
born in 2019 at Frimley Park Hospital.

Page 7

Agenda Item 2. 



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

The Council was informed that the Mayor had attended numerous other events 
since the meeting in December 2018, including the Windlesham Pram Race on 
New Year’s Day, Camberley Reel Club’s Burns Night Supper, the World Darts at 
Lakeside, and the HATS Pantomime. He had also attended the Lord Lieutenant’s 
Reception for the Surrey nominees for the Queen’s awards for voluntary service 
2019. 

The Mayor reported that he had joined the High Sherriff of Surrey at St Mary’s 
Church, Camberley to present Maureen Hume and her team at the Alzheimer’s 
Café, along with Robin van Creveld from the Man with a Pan initiative, with the 
High Sherriff’s award for recognising great and valuable services in Surrey Heath.

57/C Vote of Thanks

Councillor Mrs Vivienne Chapman moved a vote of thanks to Councillor Moira 
Gibson for all her years of service as Leader of the Council. Members paid tribute 
to her hard work and reflected on the numerous roles she had undertaken, her 
achievements, and anecdotes of her time as Leader. 

The Chief Executive, of behalf of the Council’s officers, paid tribute to Councillor 
Gibson and thanked her for her support.

In response, Councillor Gibson said it had been a pleasure to serve as Leader and 
represent Windlesham. She referred to particular highlights from her time in office 
and paid tribute to the councillors and officers she had worked with during her 28 
years as a councillor. She also paid tribute to her late agent, Alan Cleverly.

58/C Appointment of Leader

It was moved by Councillor Robin Perry and seconded by Councillor Charlotte 
Morley that Councillor Richard Brooks be appointed Leader of the Council for the 
remainder of the council term. The motion was put to the vote and carried.

The Leader made and signed the Declaration of Acceptance of Office of Leader of 
the Council.

RESOLVED that Councillor Richard Brooks be appointed Leader of 
the Council for the remainder of the council term.

59/C Executive Arrangements

In accordance with the Council’s governance arrangements, the Leader informed 
the Council that Councillor Charlotte Morley would be the Deputy Leader and the 
following councillors would be Portfolio Holders with the areas of responsibility as 
set out below:

Portfolio Area Portfolio Holder
Customer Experience & Digital Councillor Paul Deach
Finance Councillor Charlotte Morley
Places & Strategy Councillor Craig Fennell

Page 8



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

Environment & Health Councillor Mrs Vivienne Chapman
Planning & People Councillor Adrian Page
Support & Safeguarding Councillor Josephine Hawkins

He reported that all decisions would be taken collectively by the Executive. He had 
not reserved any decisions to the office of the Council Leader and no individual 
decision making powers had been delegated to Portfolio Holders.

60/C Leader's Announcements

The Leader informed the Council that he had recently attended the Surrey Leaders 
meeting and a meeting of the Joint Executive with Surrey County Council. He had 
also met with the Leaders and Deputy Leaders of Guildford Borough Council and 
Rushmoor Borough Council and hoped to meet more of the Leaders and Deputy 
Leaders in the nearby boroughs shortly. 

The Leader congratulated the SHAPE team for being awarded over £600,000 of 
grants from One Public Estate monies for Surrey projects, including the Land East 
of Knoll Road project.

61/C Setting of the Council Budget and Council Tax for 2019/20

The Council received a report setting out the Council’s revenue budget for the 
coming financial year. Members were reminded that councils were legally obliged 
to set a balanced budget and it was advised that the budget presented achieved 
this through a combination of efficiencies, increased returns from investment 
assets and an increase in Council Tax. 

The net cost of services for 2019/20 at £13,427,892 represented an increase of 
£2,078,892.  This was as a result of inflationary pressures in areas such as wages 
and contracted costs, together with reductions in grants for services the Council 
provided. This had been offset by increases in investment income and the use of 
grants and reserves. 

Members were reminded that councils would be required to hold a referendum if 
their Council Tax increase was more than the higher of 2.99% or £5. The budget 
has been prepared on the basis of slightly below the maximum permissible 
increase of 2.94%, for rounding purposes. It was noted that Surrey County Council 
and Surrey Police had opted for the maximum permited increases.

Overall no general savings target was required this year and none of this year’s 
New Homes Bonus would be needed to support revenue expenditure. 

The Council continued to receive no Revenue Support Grant and central funding, 
which included business rates, had fallen by £2.7m in 8 years. This loss, together 
with inflationary pressures, had been made up by the Council following a strategy 
of greater efficiency, investment in property and income generation rather than 
cuts to services. However, the financial forecast indicated that there were future 
budget pressures to be addressed if current services were to be maintained.

Page 9



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

Government funding in the form of business rates and New Homes Bonus had 
been based on the provisional settlement announced in December 2018 and 
confirmed on 29 January 2019.

It was repoted that the Section 151 Officer had determined that a surplus of 
£1,000,000 could be declared on the Collection Fund for the year. Of this, 
£756,700 would  be paid to Surrey County Council, £126,800 to the Police and 
Crime Commissioner, with the remaining £116,500 to this council. This would be 
used to support the Budget for 2019/20.

It had been determined that items totalling £2,042,116 of expenditure should be 
funded from reserves relating to community grants, transformatiom costs, grounds 
maintenance for SANGS, grounds and playgrounds maintenance, family support, 
the Council’s elections, a temporary shortfall in rents, and pension deficit 
payments.

Special expenses reflected the cost of providing services to non-parished areas 
which in parished areas were funded by a parish precept. The charge was billed 
as a separate item to non-parished areas in a similar way to a precept in parished 
areas. 

All reserves and provisions were considered appropriate and supportive of future 
expenditure requirements. Revenue Reserves (including earmarked reserves) 
were projected to be around £30m at 31 March 2019.  However the Council had 
no capital reserves which meant that all capital expenditure had to be funded 
through borrowing.

In respect of the General Fund Working Balance, a risk calculation indicated that a 
minimum balance of £2m was needed to provide financial cover for day to day 
cash flow and any financial emergencies which might occur during the financial 
year. 

It was noted that a number of fees and charges had been increased and had been 
approved in accordance with the Financial Regulations. Income from investment 
propoerty was budgeted to contribute £1.245m to the 2019/20 budget after loans 
and repayments. 

The Council was required to consider a financial forecast which predicted the 
Council’s finances over the short and medium term.  This year had proved to be 
especially difficult as the Government had given no indication as to the level of 
Local Government funding beyond 2019/20.

Members reviewed the 2019/20 – 2022/23 Financial Strategy annexed to the 
report and the challenges faced over the next 4 years set out therein.

As the Council had no capital receipts it could only fund its capital plans by 
borrowing or by way of grant. If these projects were not in themselves self-
financing then the interest and Minimum Revenue Provision would have to be 
covered.

Page 10



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

The Council’s Chief Financial Officer confirmed he was satisfied that the 
preparation of the 2019/20 estimates had been undertaken with rigour and due 
diligence and provided the appropriate level of resources to meet forecast service 
requirements whichever Budget option was adopted.  He also reported that the 
Council’s Reserves, Provisions and the General Fund Working Balance, 
supplemented by the Revenue Capital Reserves were at such levels to meet all 
known future expenditure requirements and fund any unforeseen or urgent 
spending which might arise.  

The Chief Financial Officer drew attention to the risks within the budget particularly 
around the reliance on income to fund services and the continuing need to make 
further savings and/or income, as shown by the Medium Term Financial Forecast, 
if services were to be maintained in to the future.

It was moved by Councillor Charlotte Morley and seconded by Councillor Richard 
Brooks and 

RESOLVED 

(i) to note that under delegated powers the Executive Head of 
Finance calculated the amount of the Council Tax Base as 
38,054.42 (Band D Equivalent properties) for the year 2019/20 
calculated in accordance with the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992, as amended;

(ii) to note that expenditure totalling £2,042,116 be charged 
directly to reserves; 

(iii) to note that £185,000 be a special expense relating to the non-
parished area of the Borough;

(iv) to note that the budget includes provision of £250,000 for the 
proposed pay increase for all staff; 

(v) to note the comments in respect of the robustness of the 
2019/20 Budget and the adequacy of the Council’s reserves, 
provisions and the General Fund Working Balance;

(vi) to note the comments in respect of the financial forecast, 
strategy and future financial sustainability of the Council;

(vii) that the Budget Requirement for 2019/20 be £13,157,835 as 
set out at the end of  Annex A to the agenda report; 

(viii) that the Council Tax Requirement for the Council’s own 
purposes for 2019/20 be £8,324,785 as set out in Annex A 
and; 

(ix) that the Council Tax for 2019/20 (excluding special expenses 
and Parish precepts) be set at £218.66 for a Band D property.

Page 11



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

Note: In accordance with the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2014, a recorded vote was taken. The following 
Members voted in favour of the decision: Councillors Dan Adams, Richard Brooks, 
Bill Chapman, Vivienne Chapman, Paul Deach, Craig Fennell, Moira Gibson, Paul 
Ilnicki, Rebecca Jennings-Evans, David Lewis, Jonathan Lytle, Katia Malcaus 
Cooper, David Mansfield, Alan McClafferty, Charlotte Morley, Adrian Page, Robin 
Perry, Chris Pitt, Joanne Potter, Nic Price, Wynne Price, Darryl Ratiram, Ian Sams, 
Valerie White, John Winterton. 

The following Members voted against the decision: Councillors Rodney Bates, Pat 
Tedder, Victoria Wheeler.

62/C Setting of Council Tax 2019/20

Having determined its Council Tax Requirement for 2019/20, the Council was now 
required formally to approve the Council Tax for the area taking into account 
precepts received from Surrey County Council, Surrey Police and Crime 
Commissioner and the Parishes.

In approving the Council Tax for 2019/20, the Council noted that the Executive, on 
11 December 2018, had approved the draft Council Tax base for 2019/20 but had 
delegated the final setting of the base to the Executive Head of Finance. The tax 
base had been set at 38,054.42 Band D equivalent properties.

It was moved by Councillor Charlotte Morley, seconded by Councillor Richard 
Brooks and

RESOLVED

1. To note that the Council Tax Base for 2019/20 calculated in 
accordance with regulations made under Section 33(5) of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992:

a) for the whole Council area as 38,054.42 (Item T in the formula 
in Section 31B of the Local Government finance Act 1992, as 
amended (the “Act”)); and

b) for dwellings in those parts of its area to which a Parish 
precept relates as in Table B below.

Bisley 1,640.07
Chobham 2,005.58
Frimley and Camberley 24,103.84
West End 2,189.73
Windlesham 8,115.20

being the amounts calculated by the Council in accordance with 
regulation 6 of the Regulations, as the amount of its Council Tax 
base for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which 
special items relate.

Page 12



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

2. that the Council Tax requirement for the Council’s own purposes for 
2019/20 (excluding parish precepts and special expenses) is £8,320,979

3. that the following amounts be calculated for the year 2019/20 in 
accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Act:

a) 57,892,630 being the aggregate of the amounts which 
the Council estimates for the items set out 
in Section 31(A)2 of the Act taking into 
account all precepts issued to it by Parish 
Councils.

b) 48,798,817 being the aggregate of the amounts which 
the Council estimates for the items set out 
in Section 31A(3) of the Act.

c) 9,093,813 being the amount by which the aggregate at 
7(a) above exceeds the aggregate at 7(b) 
above, calculated by the Council in 
accordance with Section 31A(4) of the Act 
as its Council Tax requirement for the year. 
(Item R in the formula in Section 31B of the 
Act).  

d) £238.97 being the amount at 7(c) above (Item R), as 
divided by Item T (5(a) above) calculated by 
the Council, in accordance with Section 31B 
of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year (including Parish 
precepts) 

e) 185,000 being the aggregate amount of all special 
items referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act 
(as per para 1 above)

f) £218.66 being the amount at 7(d) above less the 
result given by dividing the amount at 7(e) 
above by Item T (1(a) above), calculated by 
the Council in accordance with Section 
34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount of its 
Council Tax for the year for dwellings in 
those parts of its area to which no Parish 
precept relates.

4. to note that the County Council and the Police Authority have issued 
precepts to the Council in accordance with Section 40 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 for each category of dwellings in the 
Council’s area as indicated in the table below.

Page 13



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

Surrey County Council Basic Precept

Valuation Bands
Precept A B C D E F G H

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Basic 900.74 1,050.86 1,200.99 1,351.11 1,651.36 1,951.60 2,251.85 2,702.22

Adult Social 
Care

68.26 79.64 91.01 102.39 125.14 147.90 170.65 204.78

Total 969.00 1,130.50 1,292.00 1,453.50 1,776.50 2,099.50 2,422.50 2,907.00

The Adult Social Care precept levied by Surrey County Council can only 
be used to fund that service. The amount shown is the aggregated 
amount of the ASC precept

Surrey Police and Crime Commissioner

Valuation Bands
A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

173.71 202.67 231.62 260.57 318.47 376.38 434.28 521.14

5. that the Council, in accordance with sections 30 and 36 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate amounts 
shown in the tables below as the amounts of Council Tax for 2019/20 for 
each part of its area and for each of the categories of dwellings.

Parish precepts and special expenses

Valuation Band
A B C D E F G H

Part of Area £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Bisley 40.91 47.72 54.54 61.36 75.00 88.63 102.27 122.72
Chobham 26.26 30.64 35.01 39.39 48.14 56.90 65.65 78.78
Frimley and Camberley 5.12 5.97 6.82 7.68 9.38 11.09 12.79 15.35
West End 30.58 35.68 40.78 45.88 56.07 66.26 76.46 91.75
Windlesham 25.17 29.37 33.56 37.76 46.15 54.54 62.93 75.51

Surrey Heath Borough Council

Valuation Bands
A B C D E F G H
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

145.77 170.07 194.36 218.66 267.25 315.84 364.43 437.32

Aggregate of Parish and Surrey Heath Borough Council

Valuation Band
A B C D E F G H

Part of Area £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Bisley 186.68 217.79 248.90 280.02 342.25 404.47 466.70 560.04
Chobham 172.03 200.71 229.37 258.05 315.39 372.74 430.08 516.10

Page 14



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

Frimley and 
Camberley 150.89 176.04 201.18 226.34 276.63 326.93 377.22 452.67
West End 176.35 205.75 235.14 264.54 323.32 382.10 440.89 529.07
Windlesham 170.94 199.44 227.92 256.42 313.40 370.38 427.36 512.83

Total of all Precepts

6. to note that the Council’s basic amount of Council Tax for 2019/20 is 
NOT excessive in accordance with the principles approved under 
Section 52ZB Local Government Finance Act 1992.

Relevant amount of Council Tax 2018/19 for the basis of the 
referendum £217.21
Relevant amount of Council Tax 2019/20 for the basis of the 
referendum £223.52

Increase of £6.31

As this increase of £6.31 is less than 3% of the 2018/19 level (£6.52) 
but more than £5 of the basic amount of Council Tax for 2019/20 it is 
NOT deemed to be excessive. 

NB: Parishes are not subject to the “Excessiveness Principles” and so 
are free to levy any increase they wish

Note: In accordance with the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2014, a recorded vote was taken. The following 
Members voted in favour of the decision: Councillor Dan Adams, Rodney Bates, 
Richard Brooks, Bill Chapman, Vivienne Chapman, Paul Deach, Craig Fennell, 
Moira Gibson, Paul Ilnicki, Rebecca Jennings-Evans, David Lewis, Jonathan Lytle, 
Katia Malcaus Cooper, David Mansfield, Alan McClafferty, Charlotte Morley, 
Adrian Page, Robin Perry, Chris Pitt, Joanne Potter, Nic Price, Wynne Price, 
Darryl Ratiram, Ian Sams, Pat Tedder, Victoria Wheeler, Valerie White, John 
Winterton. 

Valuation Band
A B C D E F G H

Part of Area £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Bisley 1,329.39 1,550.96 1,772.52 1,994.09 2,437.22 2,880.35 3,323.48 3,988.18

Chobham 1,314.74 1,533.88 1,752.99 1,972.12 2,410.36 2,848.62 3,286.86 3,944.24

Frimley
& Camberley 1,293.60 1,509.21 1,724.80 1,940.41 2,371.60 2,802.81 3,234.00 3,880.81

West End 1,319.06 1,538.92 1,758.76 1,978.61 2,418.29 2,857.98 3,297.67 3,957.21

Windlesham 1,313.65 1,532.61 1,751.54 1,970.49 2,408.37 2,846.26 3,284.14 3,940.97

Page 15



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

63/C Executive, Committees and Other Bodies

(a) Executive – 11 December 2018 and 22 January, 30 January and 19 
February 2019

It was moved by Councillor Richard Brooks, seconded by Councillor 
Paul Deach, and 

RESOLVED that the open minutes of the meetings of the Executive 
held on 11 December 2018 and 22 January, 30 January and 19 
February 2019 be received and the recommendations therein be 
adopted as set out below:

 71/E – Treasury Strategy 2019/20

RESOLVED that

(i) The Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20;

(ii) The Treasury Management Indicators for 2019/20 at Annex C 
of the agenda report; and

(iii) The Minimum Revenue Provision policy statement and 
estimated minimum revenue provision payment table at 
Annex F of the agenda report

be adopted.

 72/E – Corporate Capital Programme 2019/2020 - 2021/22

RESOLVED that

(i) the new capital bids for £2.348m for 2019/20, as set out in 
Annex A to the agenda report, be approved and be 
incorporated into the Capital Programme; 

(ii) The Prudential Indicators summarised below and explained in 
Annex C of the agenda report, including the MRP statement, 
for 2019/20 to 2021/22 in accordance with the requirements of 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s 
(CIPFA) Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities 2011 be approved.

Prudential Indicator
2019/20
Estimate
d
£m

2020/21
Estimate
d
£m

2021/22
Estimate
d
£m

Capital Expenditure 2.348 0.64 0.6
Capital Financing Requirement 183 181 179
Ratio of net financing costs to net 
revenue stream

12.36% 11.65% 11.44%

Page 16



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

Financing Costs 1.342 1.306 1.306

Operational Boundary 185 185 185
Authorised Limit 190 190 190

 73/E – Investment Strategy Report 2019/20

RESOLVED that the Investment Strategy, as set out at Annex A to 
the agenda report, be agreed.

 74/E – Capital Strategy Report 2019/20

RESOLVED that the Capital Strategy, as set out at Annex A to the 
report, be agreed.

 76/E – Pay Policy Statement

RESOLVED that the Surrey Heath Borough Council Pay Policy 
Statement 2019/20, as attached at Annex A to the agenda report, 
be agreed.

(b) Planning Applications Committee – 13 December 2018 and 10 January 
and 7 February 2019

It was moved by Councillor Valerie White, seconded by Councillor Katia 
Malcaus Cooper, and 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings of the Planning 
Applications Committee held on 13 December 2018 and 10 January 
and 7 February 2019 be received.

(c) Performance and Finance Scrutiny Committee – 5 December 2018 and 
6 February 2019

It was moved by Councillor Katia Malcaus Cooper, seconded by 
Councillor Darryl Ratiram, and 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings of the Performance 
and Finance Scrutiny Committee held on 5 December 2018 and 6 
February 2019 be received.

(d) Licensing Committee – 16 January 2019

It was moved by Councillor Adrian Page, seconded by Councillor Nic 
Price and 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing 
Committee held on be received and the recommendations therein 
be adopted as set out below:

Page 17



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

 6/L – Gambling Act 2005 – Draft Statement of Principles 2019-2022

RESOLVED that the Gambling Act 2005 Statement of Policy – 31 
January 2019 to 30 January 2022, as attached at Annex A to the 
agenda report, be adopted. 

(e) Joint Staff Consultative Group – 17 January 2019

It was moved by Councillor Paul Ilnicki, seconded by Councillor Robin 
Perry and 

RESOLVED that the notes of the meeting of the Joint Staff 
Consultative Group held on 17 January 2019 be received.

(f) External Partnerships Select Committee – 12 February 2019

It was moved by Councillor Rebecca Jennings-Evans, seconded by 
Councillor Jonathan Lytle and 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings of the External 
Partnerships Select Committee held on 12 February 2019 be 
received.

64/C Governance Working Group

The Governance Working Group had met on 11 January 2019, where it had 
reviewed

a. the ICT Code of Practice for Members;
b. the size of the committee memberships; 
c. a number of proposed minor changes to the Constitution; 
d. revisions to the Social Media Protocol for Councillors and a new 

Social Media Guide for Councillors; and
e. a revised Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy;

The Working Group had reviewed revisions to the ICT Code of Practice for 
Councillors, which had included the addition of a paragraph prohibiting the auto-
forwarding of emails to another email account, including to Surrey County Council 
email addresses; new sections on data protection to reflect recent legislative 
changes; and the inclusion of a sentence reminding Members to write emails in a 
business-like manner.

The Working Group had also considered the restriction on councillors using non-
council email addresses for council businesses and had recognised that, in some 
instances, political group work was more appropriately managed through personal 
email accounts and this provision would need to be treated flexibly.  It was also 
agreed to extend paragraph 8.1 regarding the Council retaining the right to monitor 
email usage to clarify that this would only take place under the supervision of the 
Monitoring Officer.

Page 18



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

Members were reminded that the Council, at its Annual Meeting in May, would be 
asked to establish Standing Committees for the 2019/20 municipal year. The 
Working Group had reviewed the size of the committees, taking into account the 
reduced Council size from May 2019 onwards, and had a reduction of members 
appointed to the larger committees, in line with the 12.5% reduction in the Council 
size. It was felt that the Audit & Standards Committee and Appointments 
Committee had a suitable number of members, with 7 and 5 members respectively 
and no changes were proposed to the size of these committees. 

The Working Group had noted that the membership of the Planning Applications 
Committee had traditionally allowed for 1 member per ward; the Council would 
have 14 wards from May 2019, which would correspond with the proposed 
reduction by 12.5%. However, it was suggested that an uneven number of 
members on Planning Applications Committee could help address the issue of 
using the Chairman’s casting vote and it was therefore proposed that this 
committee would comprise 15 members.

The Working Group had reviewed a number of proposed amendments to the 
Constitution. The changes proposed principally updated references in the 
Constitution and ensured that cross references in different sections of the 
Constitution were consistent.

The maximum number of members of the Executive that could be appointed to the 
Regulatory Committees and the Joint Staff Consultative Group had been reviewed 
in view of the reduction in councillors from May 2019, taking into account a 
potential reduction in the size of committees, whilst also recognising a need to 
ensure an appropriate balance of members on these non-executive bodies. These 
reasons had been noted but it was suggested that such an amendment could 
affect the majority group leader’s ability to allocate sufficient members to a 
committee. It had been agreed to recommend that the rule be amended so it was 
expressed as a percentage of the body’s membership, but the situation would be 
monitored.

A new Social Media Guide for councillors had been reviewed by the Group. This 
guide was intended to provide practical guidance for councillors in their use of 
social media and would sit alongside the Social Media Protocol for Councillors, 
which formed part of the Documents Which Support the Constitution.

The Social Media Protocol for Councillors had also been reviewed, including an 
additional paragraph encouraging councillors to share the posts on their own 
social media channels whilst also requesting that they do not post questions or 
political statements below the posts on the Council’s page. Concerns had been 
expressed about restricting councillors’ ability to express views on the Council’s 
pages and it had been agreed that the paragraph would be revised and circulated 
to its members for agreement.

The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy had been updated to reflect amendments 
to job titles and the change of the Council’s External Auditor. In accordance with 
the Scheme of Delegation of Functions to Officers, following feedback from the 
Working Group, the Executive Head of Corporate agreed the proposed changes to 
the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy. 

Page 19



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

RESOLVED that

(i) the ICT Code of Practice for Members, as attached at Annex A 
to the agenda report, be agreed; 

(ii) from May 2019, membership levels for each of the committees 
be as follows:

Planning Applications 15
Licensing 13 
Performance and Finance Scrutiny 13
External Partnerships Select 13
Audit & Standards 7
Appointments 5

(iii) minor updates to the Constitution, as attached at Annex B to 
the agenda report, be agreed; and

(iv) the revised Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy, as set out at 
Annex C to the agenda report, be noted.

65/C Community Governance Review

The Council received a report on a request from Windlesham Parish Council 
(WPC) to conduct a Community Governance Review in order to re-instate an 
equal number of councillors representing each village in the parish area. WPC had 
passed a motion at its meeting on 27 November 2019 requesting this review.

In 2016-17 the Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) 
had carried out an electoral review of Surrey Heath Borough and provided revised 
electoral arrangements for the borough, to be effective from May 2019. These 
arrangements included alterations to boundaries between Bagshot and 
Windlesham wards, with 550 households moving from Windlesham ward to 
Bagshot ward.

As a consequence of the borough review, the LGBCE had provided revised 
arrangements for Windlesham parish as legislation required that a parish ward 
must lie wholly within a single borough electoral ward. The revised boundaries for 
the parish reflected the revised borough boundaries, meaning that the electors in 
the north of Windlesham ward would transfer from Windlesham parish ward to 
Bagshot parish ward.  Taking into account electoral equality between the parish 
wards, the LGBCE had also made the following revisions to WPC’s electoral 
arrangements:

Parish Ward Number of Councillors
Bagshot 8

Lightwater 7
Windlesham 3

Page 20



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

The Surrey Heath Borough Council (Electoral Changes) Order 2017 containing the 
LGBCE’s recommendations had been laid in Parliament on 25 October 2017 and 
made on 13 December 2017.

Members were informed that, as a principal authority, Surrey Heath Borough 
Council had the power to undertake a Community Governance Review (CGR), as 
requested by WPC. However, if the Council wished to alter the electoral 
arrangements put in place by the LGBCE within a 5-year period of that order it was 
required it to consult the LGBCE. In effect this placed a 5 year moratorium on the 
LGBCE’s decision, making the revised electoral arrangements for Windlesham 
Parish ‘protected electoral arrangements’. 

Furthermore, in conducting a CGR this Council would need to be mindful of the 
LGBCE’s criteria, including electoral equality requirements. It was therefore 
considered that, even if the LGBCE was minded to allow the Council to conduct a 
CGR on its protected electoral arrangements, it was unlikely that the CGR would 
meet these requirements.

It was moved by Councillor Richard Brooks and seconded by Councillor Charlotte 
Morley that a Community Governance Review to alter Windlesham Parish 
Council’s electoral arrangements not be conducted at the present time.

The Council was informed that WPC had received legal advice which had 
indicated that its request carried the same weight as a Community Governance 
Petition and the Council therefore had a duty to conduct a CGR. Furthermore, the 
advice WPC had received had advised that the Borough Council could have 
rejected the alterations to parish ward boundaries at the time of the LGBCE 
review.

In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 14.11 (c), it was moved by Councillor 
Katia Malcaus Cooper and seconded by Councillor Rebecca Jennings-Evans that 
consideration of the request for a Community Governance Review be deferred in 
order for the legal position to be further clarified. The amendment was put to the 
vote and carried. 

RESOLVED that consideration of the request from Windlesham 
Parish Council for a Community Governance Review be deferred in 
order for the legal position to be further clarified.

66/C Leader's Question Time

The Leader received a question from Councillor Rodney Bates concerning 
accessibility in the Town Centre for disabled residents and for those with 
pushchairs, both within the Centres and for accessing and circulating within shops, 
and agreed to look into the matter.

In response to a question from Councillor Katia Malcaus Cooper, the Leader 
advised that the prevention of traveller incursions would continue to be managed 
in coordination with the Police and Surrey County Council and various moves had 
been made to look at options for transit sites.

Page 21



Minutes\Council\27 February 2019

67/C Exclusion of Press and Public

In accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public were excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the ground that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
the paragraphs of Part 3 of Schedule 12A of the Act as set out below:

Minute Paragraphs

55/C (part) 3
68/C 3
69/C 3

Note: minute 68/C is a summary of matters considered in Part II of the agenda, the 
minutes of which it is considered should remain confidential at the present time.

68/C Executive and Committees - Exempt

(a)Executive - 30 January and 19 February 2019

It was moved by Councillor Richard Brooks, seconded by Councillor 
Paul Deach, and

RESOLVED that the exempt minutes of the meeting of the 
Executive held on 19 February 2019 be received and the exempt 
recommendation therein be adopted.

69/C Review of Exempt Items

The Council reviewed the items which had been considered at the meeting 
following the exclusion of members of the press and public as they involved the 
likely disclosure of exempt information.

RESOLVED that the decision associated with minute 68/C be made 
public after the completion of negotiations, but all financial and 
contractual information therein to remain exempt for the present 
time.

Mayor 

Page 22



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of 
Regulation 21(1)(A) of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000.



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes\Executive\25 February 2019

Minutes of a Meeting of the Executive 
held at Surrey Heath House on 25 
February 2019 

+ Cllr Moira Gibson (Chairman)

+
+
+
+

Cllr Richard Brooks
Cllr Mrs Vivienne Chapman
Cllr Paul Deach
Cllr Craig Fennell

-

+

Cllr Josephine Hawkins
Cllr Alan McClafferty
Cllr Charlotte Morley

+  Present
-  Apologies for absence presented

In Attendance:  Cllr Rodney Bates, Cllr Bill Chapman, Cllr Paul Ilnicki, Cllr 
Rebecca Jennings-Evans, Cllr Jonathan Lytle, Cllr Katia Malcaus Cooper, Cllr 
Adrian Page, Cllr Chris Pitt, Cllr Ian Sams and Cllr Valerie White

84/E Minutes

The open and exempt minutes of the meeting held on 19 February 2019 were 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman, subject to the correct of Councillor 
Charlotte Morley being shown as not present at the meeting.

85/E Exclusion of Press and Public

In accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) and Regulation 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the press and 
public were excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
ground that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
the paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as set out below:

Minute Paragraph(s)

84/E (part) 3
86/E 3
87/E 3

Note: Minute 86/E is a summary of matters considered in Part II of the agenda, the 
minutes of which it is considered should remain confidential at the present time.

86/E London Road Development

The Council made decisions in relation to the London Road Development.

87/E Review of Exempt Items

Page 25

Agenda Item 3. 



Minutes\Executive\25 February 2019

The Executive reviewed the reports which had been considered at the meeting 
following the exclusion of members of the press and public, as it involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information.

RESOLVED that 

(i) the decision at minute 86/E remain exempt until the end of 
the standstill and challenge period; and

(ii) all financial and contractual information to remain exempt 
for the present time.

Chairman 

Page 26



Document is Restricted

Page 27

By virtue of 
Regulation 21(1)(A) of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000.



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes\Executive\19 March 2019

Minutes of a Meeting of the Executive 
held at Council Chamber, Surrey Heath 
House, Knoll Road, Camberley, GU15 
3HD on 19 March 2019 

+ Cllr Richard Brooks (Chairman)

+
+
+

Cllr Mrs Vivienne Chapman
Cllr Paul Deach
Cllr Craig Fennell

+
+
+

Cllr Josephine Hawkins
Cllr Charlotte Morley
Cllr Adrian Page

+  Present

In Attendance:  Cllr Chris Pitt and Cllr Valerie White

88/E Minutes

The open and exempt minutes of the meeting held on 25 February 2019 were 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman. 

89/E Annual Plan 2019/2020

The Annual Plan included an overview of the vision and priorities from the Five-
Year Strategy and stated the outputs and success measures which would be 
delivered in 2019/20 for each of the key priorities. These priorities were presented 
under the headings of Place, Prosperity, People and Performance. 

The Executive reviewed the document and agreed to add additional references to 
the borough’s villages in the foreword and the People and Prosperity sections of 
the Plan. The wording would be finalised by the Executive Head of Transformation 
in consultation with the Leader. 

RESOLVED that that Annual Plan 2019/20, as set out at Annex A to 
the agenda, be agreed subject to the addition of references to the 
villages in the foreword, People, and Prosperity sections, with the 
wording to be agreed by the Executive Head of Transformation in 
consultation with the Leader.

90/E Community Fund Grants

The Executive considered 4 applications for grants from the Council’s Community 
Fund Grant Scheme.  Members considered each application, the recommendation 
and the rationale.

Members were informed that the Bagshot and Crawley Rise Tennis Club had 
requested a grant of £25,000 to construct a 5th all weather tarmac tennis court. It 
had been proposed that a grant in the region of £8,000 be awarded for this project. 
However, the Executive felt that further information and clarification was required 
in respect of this application; it was therefore agreed to defer and delegate any 
decision to award a grant to the Executive Head of Transformation, in consultation 

Page 29

Agenda Item 4. 



Minutes\Executive\19 March 2019

with the Portfolio Holder for Support & Safeguarding, pending receipt of this 
information.

RESOLVED that

(i) subject to the conditions set out in the agenda report, the 
following grants be awarded from the Council’s Community 
Fund Grant Scheme:

a. £6,500 to Citizens Advice Surrey Heath for relocation 
costs;

b. £3,000 to Bisley Village Hall to replace 3 windows; 
c. £2,232 to Heatherside Community Centre to replace 

kitchen doors, sink and taps; and

(ii) a decision on awarding a grant to Bagshot and Crawley Rise 
Tennis Club to construct a 5th all weather tarmac tennis court 
be deferred and delegated to the Executive Head of 
Transformation, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Support & Safeguarding, pending further clarification and 
information on the application.

91/E Parking Places Order Amendment No 1: Creation of St Georges Road 
Resident Permit Holders Only car park.

The Executive considered a report seeking the amendment of the Surrey Heath 
Borough Off-Street Parking Places Order 2018 to create a residents’ only off-street 
car park in St Georges Road service area, to be known as St Georges Road 
Resident Permit Holders Only car park.

St Georges Road service area was situated behind properties 11 to 27 High 
Street, Camberley and was owned by Surrey Heath Borough Council, with access 
to the car park controlled by a rising bollard operated by E & J Ground Rents, 
Winchester.

Members were reminded that, as a result of the High Street improvement works 
scheduled to begin later that year, there would be no residents’ parking on the 
High Street between its junction with Pembroke Broadway and its junction with St 
Georges Road and Obelisk Way. This would remove convenient on-street parking 
for a small number of on-street resident permit holders who lived in this section of 
the High Street.

St Georges Road service area currently had no parking restrictions and was being 
used as a car park without the permission of the Council. In order to control the 
use of this service area it would be necessary to implement a parking places order 
and restrict the use to resident permit holders.

It was therefore proposed to introduce parking restrictions on St Georges Road 
service area to create St Georges Road Residents Permit Car Park, with permits 
available at a cost of £100 per annum; this fee was consistent with residents’ 
parking fees in Council car parks. Qualifying residences would be the residential 

Page 30



Minutes\Executive\19 March 2019

properties in the High Street located between its junctions with Pembroke 
Broadway and its junctions with St Georges Road / Obelisk Way. The initial offer 
would be to qualifying residences with an existing on-street High Street parking 
permit.

All affected residents would be advised of the loss of their ability to apply for an 
on-street residents parking permit prior to the publication of the Notice of Proposal 
and given priority to apply for a residents’ permit for St Georges Road Residents 
Permit Only car park.

RESOLVED that

(i) a parking places order in St Georges Road car park for 
resident permit holders only and to charge £100 per permit be 
introduced;

(ii) the Borough of Surrey Heath (Off-Street Parking Places) 
Order 2018 be amended to include St Georges Road car park; 
and

(iii) the Executive Head of Business in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder for Business be authorised to consider any 
objections arising from the public consultation.

92/E Update to the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance 
Strategy Supplementary Planning Document

The Executive was reminded that in November 2018 it had agreed that the draft 
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance Strategy Supplementary 
Planning Document (2018) be subject to a six week consultation.

Members were informed that, following this consultation, agreement was now 
sought to adopt the Thames Basin Heath SPA Avoidance Strategy as a 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). The main changes made to the SPD 
as a result of the consultation were noted. 

The SPD would provide additional guidance to policies in the Surrey Heath Core 
Strategy and Development Management Policies Development Plan Document 
adopted in 2012. The SPD also set out the approach that the Council would take 
to avoiding harm to the Special Protection Area as a result of new housing 
development. 

RESOLVED that the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area 
Avoidance Strategy, as set out at Annex 1 to the agenda report, be 
adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document in accordance 
with Regulation 14 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

93/E Council Finances as at 31 December 2018

Page 31



Minutes\Executive\19 March 2019

The Executive received the third quarter monitoring report against the approved 
budget, which provided an update on the Revenue, Treasury and Capital budget 
position as at 31 December 2018.  At this stage in the year, the year-end outturn 
position could be forecasted with more accuracy. Members were advised that it 
was forecast that spending would be under budget at the end of the financial year.

Members were informed that, following the receipt of extra funding from the 
Department of Communities and Local Government, an addition to the capital 
programme relating to renovation grants of £55,910 was requested. 

Further to the additional funding, approval was sought for the addition of £16k to 
the capital programme for the purchase of a multi-purpose vehicle for use by the 
Council’s enforcement team. 

RESOLVED to note the report.

RECOMMENDED to Full Council the additions to the 2018/19 
capital programme and revenue budget, as set out in the report. 

94/E Write Off of Irrecoverable Bad Debts

The Executive considered a report seeking authority to write-off irrecoverable 
revenues bad debts over £1,500. It was advised that all of the debts had been 
subject to the relevant recovery action and tracing enquiries had been undertaken. 

RESOLVED that bad debts totalling £67,288.41 in respect of 
Council Tax and £350,354.48 in respect of Non-Domestic Rates be 
approved for write off.

95/E Exclusion of Press and Public

In accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 
amended) and Regulation 5 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the press and 
public were excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
ground that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
the paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act as set out below:

Minute Paragraph(s)

88/E (part) 3
96/E 1

96/E Review of Exempt Items

The Executive reviewed the reports which had been considered at the meeting 
following the exclusion of members of the press and public, as it involved the likely 
disclosure of exempt information.

RESOLVED that the annex to the agenda report associated with 
minute 94/E remain exempt.

Page 32



Minutes\Executive\19 March 2019

Chairman 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\7 March 2019

Minutes of a Meeting of the Planning 
Applications Committee held at 
Council Chamber, Surrey Heath 
House, Knoll Road, Camberley, GU15 
3HD on 7 March 2019 

+ Cllr Edward Hawkins (Chairman)
+ Cllr Valerie White (Vice Chairman) 

-
+
-
-
+
-
-

Cllr Nick Chambers
Cllr Mrs Vivienne Chapman
Cllr Colin Dougan
Cllr Surinder Gandhum
Cllr Jonathan Lytle
Cllr Katia Malcaus Cooper
Cllr David Mansfield

-
+
+
+

+
+

Cllr Max Nelson
Cllr Adrian Page
Cllr Robin Perry
Cllr Ian Sams
Cllr Conrad Sturt
Cllr Pat Tedder
Cllr Victoria Wheeler

+  Present
-  Apologies for absence presented

Substitutes:  Cllr Paul Ilnicki (in place of Cllr Katia Malcaus Cooper)

Members in Attendance: Cllr Paul Deach and Cllr Darryl Ratiram 

Officers Present: Ross Cahalane, Duncan Carty, Michelle Fielder, Gareth John, 
Jonathan Partington  and Eddie Scott

47/P Minutes of Previous Meeting

The Minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2019 were confirmed and signed 
by the chairman. 

48/P Application Number: 18/0033 - Kings Court & Land to front of Kings Court, 
91-93 High Street, Camberley, GU15 3RN

The application was for the change of use of existing building to provide 23 x 1-
bed and 7 x 2-bed apartments and extensions to existing building to provide a 
further 32 x 1-bed and 17 x 2-bed apartments and 2 retail units, with associated 
parking, access and layby, roof garden, bin and cycle storage, following part 
demolition of existing building. (Amended plan rec'd 04/07/2018, 21/12/2018 & 
11/02/2019.)

Members were advised of the following updates:

“The applicant has confirmed that the existing building has been converted and is 
now fully occupied [under the prior approval SU/14/0336] (as 23 no one bed and 7 
no two bed flats).

The amendments to proposal received on 11 February 2019 (and referred to in the 
update report) have, due to the road widening proposal, resulted in the loss of the 
originally proposed layby.

Page 35

Agenda Item 5. 



Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\7 March 2019

County Highway Authority has provided a list of proposed conditions.  These 
include a method of construction statement (already provided at Condition 4), 
provision of parking/servicing/road widening (an adaption of Condition 10), 
construction of carriageway and footway realignment, securing of cycle parking 
and pedestrian inter-visibility splays (new conditions) and informatives.

Reasons for Proposed Conditions 4, 5, 6, 8 and 10 to refer to the NPPF 2019. 

AN AMENDMENT TO CONDITIONS:
4. No development shall take place until a Method of Construction Statement, to 
include details of:

(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) storage of plant and materials
(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)
(e) provision of boundary hoarding
(f) hours of construction
(g) measures to keep the public highway clean
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Only the approved details shall be implemented during the construction period. 

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development should not 
prejudice highway safety or residential amenity; nor cause inconvenience to other 
highway users and to accord with Policies CP11, DM9 and DM11 of the Surrey 
Heath Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 2012 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019. 

5. The development hereby permitted shall not commence until details of the 
design of a surface water drainage scheme have been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The design must satisfy the SuDS 
Hierarchy and be compliant with the national Non-Statutory Technical Standards 
for SuDS, NPPF and Ministerial Statement on SuDS.  the required drainage 
details shall include:

(a) the results of infiltration testing completed in accordance with BRE Digest: 
2365 and confirmation of groundwater  levels;
(b) evidence of the proposed solution will effectively manage the 1 in 30 & 1 in 100 
(+40% allowance for climate change) storm events, during all stages of 
development (pre, post and during), associated discharge rates and storage 
volumes shall be provided using a maximum discharge rate of 2 litres/sec (as per 
SuDS pro-forma or otherwise as agreed by the Local Planning Authority);
(c) detailed drainage design drawings and calculations to include: a finalised 
drainage layout detailing location of drainage elements, pipe diameters, levels, 
and long and cross sections of each element including details of any flow 
restrictions and maintenance/risk reducing features (silt traps, inspection 
chambers, etc.);
(d) details of how the drainage system will be protected during construction and 
how runoff (including any pollutants) from the development site will be managed 
before the drainage system is operational; 

Page 36



Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\7 March 2019

(e) details of management responsibilities and maintenance regimes for the 
drainage system; and 
(f) a plan showing exceedance flows (i.e. during rainfall greater than design events 
or during blockage) and how property on and off site will be protected.
Only the approved details shall be implemented during the construction period. 
Reason: To ensure that the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for SuDS and the final drainage design does not increase flood risk on 
and off the site and to comply with Policies CP2 and DM10 of the Surrey Heath 
Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 2012 and the National 
Planning Policy Framework 2019.

6. Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, a verification 
report carried out by a qualified drainage engineer must be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority.  This report must demonstrate that the 
drainage system has been constructed as per the agreed scheme (or detail any 
minor variations), provide the details of the management company and state the 
national grid reference of any key drainage elements (surface water attenuation 
devices/areas, flow restrictions and outfalls). 

Reason: To ensure that the design meets the national Non-Statutory Technical 
Standards for SuDS and to comply with Policies CP2 and DM10 of the Surrey 
Heath Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 2012 and the 
National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

8. No development shall take place until a scheme to deal with contamination of 
the site has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.  This 
scheme shall include:

(a) a contaminated land desk study and suggested site assessment methodology;
(b) a site investigation report based upon (a);
(c) a remediation action are a plan based upon (a) and (b);
(d) a "discovery strategy" dealing with unforeseen contamination discovered during 
construction;
(e) a "validation strategy" identifying measures to validate the works undertaken as 
a result of (c) and (d); and
(f) a verification report appended with substantiating evidence demonstrating the 
agreed remediation has been carried out.

The development shall be carried out and completed wholly in accordance with the 
agreed details unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory strategy is put in place for addressing 
contaminated land, making the land suitable for the development hereby approved 
without resulting in risk to construction workers, future users of the land, occupiers 
of nearby land and the environment generally in accordance with Policies CP2 and 
DM9 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
2012 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. 

10. The car parking and servicing area, and access thereto and road widening, 
shown on Drawing No. 17.17-D-210 Rev F received on 11 February 2019 shall be 
provided prior to the occupation of the extension to the building hereby approved 

Page 37



Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\7 March 2019

unless the prior written approval has been obtained from the Local Planning 
Authority having first consulted with the County Highway Authority. Once approved 
these areas shall be retained for the purposes of the use as indicated on this 
approved drawing in perpetuity. 

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to comply with Policies CP11 and 
DM11 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
2012 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. 

ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS:
11. Prior to the first occupation of any new dwelling the proposed carriageway and 
footway realignment as broadly identified on Drawing No. 17.17-D-210 Rev F 
received on 11 February 2019 shall be constructed in accordance with a detailed 
scheme to be agreed with and meeting the requirements of the County Highway 
Authority. Such works shall include all necessary adjustment to the existing 
kerbing, drainage, surfacing materials, road signage and road markings.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to comply with Policies CP11 and 
DM11 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
2012 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

12. Prior to the first occupation of any new dwelling the secure parking of bicycles 
within the development site shall be provided as identified on Drawing No. 17.17-
D-210 Rev F received on 11 February 2019. 

Reason: The above condition is required in recognition of Section 9 “Promoting 
Sustainable Transport” in the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

13. The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until 
pedestrian inter-visibility splays have been provided on each side of the access in 
accordance with the requirements of the County Highway Authority. Such details 
will require open panels or through visible panels either side of the access 
(excepting brick piers), providing a clear height between 0.6m and 2.0m high. 

Reason: In the interest of highway safety and to comply with Policies CP11 and 
DM11 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy and Development Management Policies 
2012 and the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

PROPOSED INFORMATIVES:
1. The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out 
any works on the highway or any works that may affect a drainage channel/culvert 
or water course.  The applicant is advised that a permit and, potentially, a Section 
278 agreement must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are 
carried out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming part 
of the highway. All works on the highway will require a permit and an application 
will need to be submitted to the County Council's Street Works Team up to 3 
months in advance of the intended start date, depending on the scale of the works 
proposed and the classification of the road. Please see 
http://www.surreycc.gov.uk/roads-and-transport/road-permits-and-licences/the-
traffic-management-permit-scheme.

Page 38



Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\7 March 2019

2. The applicant is advised that Consent may be required under Section 23 of the 
Land Drainage Act 1991. Please see www.surreycc.gov.uk/people-and-
community/emergency-planning-and-community-safety/flooding-advice.

3. The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to obstruct 
the public highway by the erection of scaffolding, hoarding or any other device or 
apparatus for which a licence must be sought from the Highway Authority Local 
Highways Service.

4. Notwithstanding any permission granted under the Planning Acts, no signs, 
devices or other apparatus may be erected within the limits of the highway without 
express approval of the Highway Authority. It is not the policy of the Highway 
Authority to approve the erection of signs or other devices of a non-statutory 
nature within the limits of the highway.”

Amendment to conditions

Reasons for Proposed Conditions 4, 5 8 and 9 to refer to the NPPF 2019.”

The officer recommendation to approve the application was proposed by 
Councillor Mrs Vivienne Chapman and seconded by Councillor Jonathan Lytle, put 
to the vote and carried.

RESOLVED that application 18/0033 be granted subject to the 
completion of a Section 106 legal agreement for the provision of a 
contribution towards the delivery of affordable housing elsewhere in 
the Borough and a SAMM contribution by 8 April 2019, or any longer 
period as agreed with the Executive Head of Regulatory, and the 
conditions set out in the Officer Report and updates. 

Note 1 
In accordance  with Part 4. Section D, paragraph 18 of the Constitution, the 
voting in relation to the application was as follows: 

Voting in favour of the recommendation to grant the application:

Councillors Mrs Vivienne Chapman, Edward Hawkins, Paul Ilnicki, 
Jonathan Lytle, Adrian Page, Robin Perry and Ian Sams. 
 
Voting against the recommendation to grant the application:

Councillors Pat Tedder, Victoria Wheeler and Valerie White.

49/P Application Number: 18/1025 - Wyvern House, 55 Frimley High Street, 
Frimley, Camberley, GU16 7HJ

The application was for a second floor extension including dormer windows above 
to facilitate conversion of offices (class B1) to 42 flats (36 one bed, 5 two bed, 1 
three bed) with associated parking, bin/cycle storage and access from Maybury 
Close.

Page 39



Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\7 March 2019

Members were advised of the following updates: 

“Emails with photographs have been sent by a neighbour to the case officer and 
Members, to highlight excessive working hours in relation to the office conversion 
already consented, including weekends. The emails/photos also raise concern 
regarding work vehicles that have been parking along Maybury Close, loss of light 
arising from the current proposed upper floor extension and highway 
safety/capacity impacts from the proposed development. 

Officer comments:
The noise complaints are being investigated by the Council’s Environmental 
Health department who have powers under environmental health legislation. An 
informative is recommended to remind the developer of their duty under this 
legislation.  

Highway impacts are assessed under Section 7.6 of the Committee Report and an 
additional construction transport management plan condition is also recommended 
(see below)

The impacts of loss of light have been considered in Section 7.5 of the Committee 
Report. It is accepted that due to the orientation, there would be some loss of 
wintertime afternoon sunlight to the Maybury Close dwellings to the northeast. 
However, it is still considered that given the separation distances and the existing 
built form relationships, no adverse harm to neighbouring amenity would arise to 
justify a reason for refusal.

Contamination (condition 8)

A Phase 1 Environmental Review has been submitted by the applicant. The 
Council’s Scientific Officer has commented that the report considers contamination 
in relation to upper floors (second and third floors only). However, the whole 
building including ground floors will be occupied by residential receptors. Given 
that the building is unoccupied, the report should consider the whole site, including 
the landscaping works now proposed, and it fails to do this. It is inappropriate to 
ignore a known use of any part of the building when considering whether the site 
can or may be determined as contaminated land. As such, the recommended 
Condition 8 to deal with potential contamination must still be attached to any 
planning permissions issued.

Additional condition

9. No development shall commence until a Construction Transport Management 
Plan, to include details of:

(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c) storage of plant and materials
(d) measures to prevent the deposit of materials on the highway

Page 40



Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\7 March 2019

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Only the approved details shall be implemented during the construction of the 
development.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development should not 
prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to 
accord with Policies CP11 and DM11 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy and 
Development Management Policies 2012.

Additional informative

6. The applicant is reminded that under the Control of Pollution Act 1974 
construction work which will be audible at the site boundary will be restricted to the 
following hours:

8.00 am – 6.00 pm Monday to Fridays

8.00 am – 1.00 pm Saturday
And not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays”

As this application had triggered the Council’s Public Speaking Scheme, Mr 
Anthony Farmer spoke in objection to the application and Mr Chris Wilmshurst, the 
agent, spoke in support of the application. 

Following discussion on the application, Members felt they needed a Site Visit, in 
order to make a considered decision.    

A recommendation to defer the application for a Member Site Visit was proposed 
by Councillor Edward Hawkins and seconded by Councillor Robin Perry. The 
recommendation was put to the vote and carried.

RESOLVED that application 18/1025 be deferred to conduct a Member 
Site Visit. 

Note 1
It was noted for the record that Cllr Edward Hawkins declared that all 
members of the Committee had received various pieces of correspondence 
on the application. 

Note 2 
Voting in favour of the recommendation to defer the application for a 
Member Site Visit: 

Councillors Mrs Vivienne Chapman, Edward Hawkins, Jonathan Lytle, Paul 
Ilnicki, Robin Perry and Ian Sams. 

Voting against the recommendation to defer the application for a Member 
Site Visit: 

Page 41



Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\7 March 2019

Councillors Adrian Page, Pat Tedder, Victoria Wheeler and Valerie White. 

50/P Application Number: 18/0991 - 79-81 Windsor Road, Chobham, Woking, 
GU24 8LD

The application was for a two storey building comprising 1 dwelling and 8 flats 
including rear dormer windows, additional vehicular access from Windsor Road, 
parking, landscaping and bin/cycle storage following demolition of existing 
buildings containing 2 retail units and 2 flats. (Additional information rec'd 
07/01/2019 & 21/01/2019.) (Amended plan rec'd 10/01/2019.) (Amended plan 
rec'd 17/01/2019.) (Amended plan rec'd 18/02/2019.)

The application would have normally been determined under the Council’s 
Scheme of Delegation, however, it had been called in for determination by the 
Planning Applications Committee at the request of Councillor Victoria Wheeler due 
to concerns regarding overdevelopment.

Members were advised of the following updates: 

“Owing to a typographical error, a correction to Condition 8 is proposed as follows:

The development hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless and until 
space has been laid out within the site in accordance with the approved plans for 
vehicles to be parked and for vehicles to turn so that they may enter and leave the 
site in forward gear. Thereafter the parking and turning areas shall be retained and 
maintained for their designated purposes.

Reason: The condition above is required in order that the development should not 
prejudice highway safety nor cause inconvenience to other highway users and to 
accord with Policies CP11 and DM11 of the Surrey Heath Core Strategy and 
Development Management Policies 2012.”

As this application had triggered the Council’s Public Speaking Scheme, Mr 
Andrew Black, the agent, spoke in support of the application. 

The officer recommendation to approve the application was proposed by 
Councillor Edward Hawkins, seconded by Councillor Adrian Page and put to the 
vote and carried. 

RESOLVED that application 18/0991 be granted to subject to 
completion of a legal agreement to secure the SAMM financial 
contribution and the conditions set out in the Officer Report. 

Note 1
Voting in favour of the recommendation to grant the application: 

Councillors Mrs Vivienne Chapman, Edward Hawkins, Paul Ilnicki, Adrian 
Page, Robin Perry, Ian Sams and Valerie White.

Voting against the recommendation to grant the application: 

Page 42



Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\7 March 2019

Councillors Jonathan Lytle, Pat Tedder and Victoria Wheeler.

51/P Princess Royal Barracks, Deepcut - Affordable Housing Provision

The item sought Member approval for the level of affordable housing to be 
delivered from Phase 4a of the PRB site under hybrid planning permission ref: 
12/0546 (as amended), prior to the submission of the relevant reserved matters 
application(s). 

Members were advised of the following updates on the item: 

“UPDATE 

The Bovis Homes reserved matter application referenced at para.6 of the report is 
now valid (application reference 18/1027).  

A previous affordable submission under condition 9 (as referenced at para 7 of the 
committee report) proposed 13.5% AH, with informal discussions seeking to 
increase this as stated in that para.  However as also noted in para 7 that 
submission was withdrawn. 

Proposed informative   

It is also proposed that an informative be added to any formal approval of the 
submitted details.  The informative should advise the applicant that while the 
resolution references the provision of up to 30 residential being delivered from the 
0.67ha parcel shown as 4a, this agreement does not provide any assurance that 
the Local Planning Authority is satisfied that this quantum of development can be 
accommodated in a satisfactory manner on the parcel.  

It is considered that a precautionary approach be taken in this matter because the 
approved (indicative) density plan for the site (contained in the design and access 
statement approved in 12/0546), shows a density range of between 25 and 45 
dwellings per hectare (dph)  in this general location.  However, to achieve 30 units 
on the 0.67ha site the density would be approximately 45 dph overall.   It is also 
noted that a design code has not yet been supplied for this parcel and so officers 
are unable to establish how this level of development may be accommodated on 
the site and whether such a level could be achieved in a satisfactory manner.   
  
It is therefore suggested the draft informative below be taken forward on the 
decision letter:
The applicant is advised that the resolution set out above does not set the 
quantum of development to be delivered from parcel 4a as identified in this 
submission.  The actual quantum of development that can be satisfactorily 
accommodated on the site can only be established through the submission of an 
acceptable reserved matters application and Design Code.   Accordingly, the 
applicant is asked to note the approved density plan for 12/0546 (as amended) 
which shows a density range of between 25 and 45 dph in this general location.  
Having regard to this background context this decision letter should not be 
construed as the Local Planning Authority giving its agreement to an overall 
density of 45 dph on land parcel 4a.”

Page 43



Minutes\Planning Applications Committee\7 March 2019

The officer’s recommendation was proposed by Councillor Edward Hawkins and 
seconded by Councillor Jonathan Lytle, put to the vote and carried.  

RESOLVED that 

i) the land parcel 4a deliver nil (0%) affordable housing, but the 
decision letter be caveated to make clear this agreement relates 
solely to parcel 4a as identified on the attached plan, is limited 
to the delivery of up to 30 units from that parcel; and

ii) any future affordable housing submissions proposing less than 
35% from any parcel on the site must be supported by a detailed 
and robust viability statement and be subject to approval by 
Planning Applications Committee. 

Note 1 
In accordance with Part 4. Section D, paragraph 18 of the Constitution, the 
voting in relation to the application was as follows: 

Voting in favour of the officer’s recommendation:

Councillors Mrs Vivienne Chapman, Edward Hawkins, Paul Ilnicki, 
Jonathan Lytle, Adrian Page, Robin Perry, Ian Sams, Pat Tedder and 
Valerie White. 

Voting against the officer’s recommendation:

Councillor Victoria Wheeler.

Chairman 

Page 44



Minutes\Performance and Finance Scrutiny Committee\20 March 2019

Minutes of a Meeting of the Performance 
and Finance Scrutiny Committee held at 
Council Chamber, Surrey Heath House, 
Knoll Road, Camberley, GU15 3HD on 
20 March 2019 

+ Cllr Katia Malcaus Cooper (Chairman)
- Cllr Darryl Ratiram (Vice Chairman) 

-
+

+
+

+

Cllr David Allen
Cllr Rodney Bates
Cllr Bill Chapman
Cllr Edward Hawkins
Cllr Paul Ilnicki
Cllr David Lewis
Cllr Max Nelson

+
+

+
+
+
+

Cllr Robin Perry
Cllr Chris Pitt
Cllr Joanne Potter
Cllr Wynne Price
Cllr Ian Sams
Cllr Victoria Wheeler
Cllr Valerie White

+  Present
-  Apologies for absence presented

Substitutes: Cllr Bates for Cllr Allen 

Members in Attendance:  Cllr Paul Deach
Cllr Josephine Hawkins

Officers Present: Julia Hutley-Savage, Principal Lawyer
Louise Livingston, Executive Head: Transformation
Kelvin Menon, Executive Head: Finance
Richard Payne, Executive Head: Corporate
Jenny Rickard, Executive Head: Regulatory

33/PF Minutes of Previous Meeting

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Performance and Finance Scrutiny 
Committee held on 6th February 2019 be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman.

34/PF Portfolio Holder Update: Customer Experience and Digital Portfolio

Councillor Paul Deach presented an update on the work carried out to date during the 
2018/198 municipal year in his capacity as Executive Portfolio Holder for Customer 
Experience and Digital Services.

The portfolio covered three main areas: digital and ICT, Communications and Marketing 
and the Contact Centre.

Arising from Members’ questions and comments the following points were noted:

 Staff were being transferred to the new telephony system team by team and the 
interface between the old and the new systems had required a ‘work around’.  It 
was expected that once all staff were using the new system these teething 
problems would be resolved.

Page 45

Agenda Item 7. 



Minutes\Performance and Finance Scrutiny Committee\20 March 2019

 The migration of the Uniform database to a new platform would improve 
functionality and enable officers to update records when they were not at their 
desks for example during site visits.

 It was confirmed that the PC upgrade/replacement project would extend to 
councillors.

 It was agreed that Cyber Security Training would be included in the Members’ 
Induction Programme.

 It was clarified that in the case of planning application representations and election 
candidates the publication of names and addresses of those submitting 
representations or supporting the nomination of an election candidate was 
regulated by law.  With regard to Freedom of Information requests the redaction of 
personal information was dealt with on a case by case basis.

 It was agreed that the possibility of extending the use of cloud based data storage 
to councillors would be investigated.

 It was thought that the selection of linked pages on the Council’s Facebook page 
was decided by an algorithm and dependent on the websites that a person viewing 
the page had visited.

 The possibility of live streaming council meetings had been explored however it 
had been decided that it would not be not cost effective when weighed against the 
number of people expected to view meetings.

 Meals at Home, Community Alarms and tennis court bookings had all received a 
greater number of enquiries than usual following publication of articles about the 
services in Heathscene.  Publication of information relating to Calls to Action had 
also generated interest from residents 

 It was agreed that Heathscene’s copy deadlines would be circulated to councillors.

The Committee thanked Councillor Deach for his update.

 
35/PF Portfolio Holder Update: Support and Safeguarding

Councillor Josephine Hawkins presented an update on the work carried out to date during 
the 2018/129 municipal year in her capacity as Executive Portfolio Holder for Support and 
Safeguarding.

It was noted that the Support and Safeguarding Portfolio covered a number of areas 
including community development, the voluntary and community sector, community fund 
and revenue grants, community safety, safeguarding, equalities and the role of Children’s 
Champion.

Arising from member’s questions and comments the following points were noted:

 The Revenue Grant system would be reviewed in the coming year to ensure that the 
grants remained fit for purpose and that the appropriate organisations were receiving 
support.

 It was clarified that applications for Community Fund Grants were considered twice a 
year, organisations had to contribute a proportion of the funding needed for the stated 
project and money was only paid out after the work had been completed.  Full criteria 
were available on the Council’s website.

 All staff had to complete an e-learning safeguarding training course. The requirements 
for Disclosure Barring Service (DBS) checks on staff was dependent on the role that 
the staff member held.  

 It was agreed that safeguarding training would be incorporated into the Councillor 
Induction Programme.

Page 46



Minutes\Performance and Finance Scrutiny Committee\20 March 2019

 Due diligence was carried out when assessing grant applications.  However, 
organisations were not routinely asked to provide information about their safeguarding 
policies as part of grant application process and it was agreed that this area would be 
explored.

 The Safe Drive Stay Alive sessions, which aimed to encourage safe and responsible 
driving amongst young drivers, were hard hitting and thought provoking for all who 
attend.  Dates of future sessions would be circulated and members were encouraged 
to attend a session if they had the opportunity.

 It was questioned whether schools were getting sufficient notice of Local Democracy 
Week events to enable them to build the activities into their timetables.  It was agreed 
that this would be followed up.

 The subjects that most frequently appeared in Freedom of Information requests were 
building control, business rates and contract information.  A database was kept of all 
Freedom of Information requests and any trends identified were made public.

The Committee thanked Councillor Hawkins for her informative update.

36/PF Surrey Heath Borough Council Annual Plan

The Committee received a report setting out the Council’s draft Annual Plan for 2019/20.  

The Annual Plan provided an overview of the vision and priorities contained within the 
Council’s Five Year Strategy and set out the outputs and success measures that would be 
delivered during 2019/20 for each of the Strategy’s key priorities.  Updates on the 
quantifiable actions taken to achieve the Annual Plan’s targets would be reported in mid-
year and end of year performance reports.

The Committee was informed that following feedback from the Executive the Annual Plan 
would be revised to include the work that was taking place in the urban and rural villages.  

It was agreed that the response sent to Councillor Pitt in relation to an enquiry about 
improving the availability of electric car charging points in the town centre would be 
followed up.

The Committee noted the report. 

37/PF Finance Report Quarter 3

The Committee considered a report providing an overview of the Council’s finances at the 
end of the third quarter (October to December) of the 2018/19 financial year.

It was reported that at the end of the reporting period, £38million had been spent on 
capital expenditure including the purchase of refuse vehicles, property acquisition and 
refurbishment of the Square shopping centre and its associated car park.   There were 
sundry debts totalling £3,463,000 and Housing Benefit Debts of £560,000.  The council 
also held £22million in cash investments and £139million of borrowing with the borrowing 
made up of a selection of long-term loans from the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) 
totalling £29million and short-term loans from other local authorities.

It was clarified that long term loans from the PWLB were cheaper than loans from other 
local authorities and the possibility of converting some of the short-term loans into long-
term loans was being explored.

The Committee commended officers for their prudent financial planning.

Page 47



Minutes\Performance and Finance Scrutiny Committee\20 March 2019

The Committee noted the report.

38/PF Corporate Risk

The Committee considered a report setting out the Council’s Corporate Risk Register.  
The Risk Register summarised the main strategic risks faced by the Council in relation to 
achieving the objectives and priorities defined in the Council’s Corporate Plan and 
identified mitigating actions that would help control those risks.

It was reported that since the agenda had been published the Risk Register had been 
updated to include a new risk which focused on the financial pressures faced by Surrey 
County Council and the potential implications for the Surrey boroughs.

The Committee noted the updated Corporate Risk Register. 

  
39/PF Council Tax Collection and Enforcement

The Committee received a report providing a summary of a pilot programme to explore 
alternative ways of collecting Council Tax arrears currently being run by the London 
Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham.  

A number of approaches had been made to Hammersmith and Fulham about the success 
or otherwise of the pilot scheme however to date no substantive response had been 
received.  It was reported that the trial was still ongoing and an update would be given 
when more information was made available.

It was stressed that it was recognised that Council Tax arrears were often only one of a 
number of debts that a resident might have and whenever possible officers worked with 
residents who were struggling to pay.  Whilst bailiffs were not regulated they did have to 
abide by Codes of Conduct; it was requested that any information regarding bailiffs who 
were collecting Council Tax arrears on behalf of the Council acting inappropriately should 
be passed to officers so that the matter could be investigated.

The Committee noted the update.
  

40/PF Work Programme

The Committee received a report setting out a draft work programme for the Committee 
for the 2019/20 Municipal Year.  

The Committee noted the standing agenda items that would be considered at each 
meeting.  It was acknowledged that due to the upcoming Borough Elections it would be 
inappropriate to encumber the new Committee with too prescriptive a work programme.  It 
was agreed that the new Chairman should meet with officers early in the new Municipal 
Year to enable a work programme to be drafted.

  
41/PF Date of Next Meeting

It was noted that the next scheduled meeting of the Performance and Finance Scrutiny 
Committee would be held on Wednesday 3rd July 2019 at 7pm.

Page 48



Minutes\Performance and Finance Scrutiny Committee\20 March 2019

The Chairman thanked the Committee members and officers for the support that they had 
given to the scrutiny process over the past year.  

Chairman 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes\Audit and Standards Committee\25 March 2019

Minutes of a Meeting of the Audit and 
Standards Committee held at Council 
Chamber, Surrey Heath House, Knoll Road, 
Camberley, GU15 3HD on 25 March 2019 

-   Cllr Oliver Lewis  (Chairman)
+ Cllr Jonathan Lytle (Vice Chairman) 

+
+

Cllr Rodney Bates
Cllr Edward Hawkins

+

+

Cllr Paul Ilnicki
Cllr Rebecca Jennings-Evans
Cllr Bruce Mansell

+  Present
-  Apologies for absence presented

Members in Attendance:  Cllr Charlotte Morley

Officers Present: Karen Limmer, Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer
Leigh Lloyd-Thomas, BDO
Kelvin Menon, Executive Head: Finance
Alex Middleton, Senior Auditor

Vice Chairman in the Chair

10/AS Minutes of Previous Meeting

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Standards Committee held 
on 26th November 2018 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

11/AS Financial Statements Audit Plan

The Committee received a report setting out BDO’s (the Council’s external auditor) plans 
for their audit of the Council’s 2017/18 financial records.

It was reported that the audit’s scope had been determined by the National Audit Office’s 
Code of Audit Practice and would include auditing the financial statements, reviewing 
arrangements to secure value for money through the economic, efficient and effective use 
of its resources and, where appropriate, exercise the auditor’s wider reporting powers and 
duties.

In setting out their approach to the audit of the accounts, DBO had identified the
following areas that would be subject to specific scrutiny:

 Management override of financial controls
 Revenue (and expenditure) recognition
 Property, plant and equipment and investment property valuation
 Pension liability valuation
 Accounting for the Joint Waste and Recycling contract
 Classification and measurement of financial instruments
 Revenue from contracts with customers
 Accounting for investment in the Jersey Property Unit Trust (JPUT)

Page 51

Agenda Item 8. 



Minutes\Audit and Standards Committee\25 March 2019

In relation to the JPUT, it was BDO’s opinion that the Council was the sole beneficiary of 
the capital and assets held in the JPUT as well as any income that the trust generated.  
Consequently, the JPUT was a bare trust and the assets in the JPUT should be 
recognised in the Council’s accounts and financial statements for accounting purposes.

The Committee noted the report.  
 

12/AS Certification of Housing Benefits Claims and Returns 2017/18

The Committee received a report setting out the findings of an audit of the
Council’s Housing Benefits Claims and Returns for 2017/18 completed by KPMG in 
November 2018.

In 2017/18, the Council had claimed a total of £15.6million in respect of Housing Benefits 
from the Government. The audit, which had been conducted in accordance with the 
requirements set out by the Government, had concluded that the claim and returns were 
fairly stated and in accordance with the relevant terms and conditions.

The errors identified by KPMG and the reasoning behind them had been fed into the 
process for calculations for 2018/19.  It was agreed that confirmation would be provided 
as to whether the underpayments identified by KPMG had been rectified.

The Committee noted the report.

13/AS Internal Audit Annual Plan 2019-20

The Committee received a report setting out the proposed work plan for the
Council’s Internal Audit Function for 2019/20.

The work plan had been based on the Internal Audit Three Year Strategic Plan and 
consisted of a combination of audit activities that were carried out on an annual basis, 
activities that were conducted on a triannual basis and one off audit projects.  It was 
expected that the activities proposed in the Annual Plan would require 430 working days 
to be delivered by the Council’s two internal auditors.  

It was clarified that the planned Leisure Centres audit would look at both Lightwater 
County Park and the Arena Leisure Centre. The Lightwater County Park audit would look 
at contract management and the service provider.  The Arena Leisure Centre audit would 
look at the processes in place to minimise service disruption during the rebuilding of the 
facility, the financial risk to the local authority and the business model in place for the new 
contract arrangements.

It was clarified that the Council’s Legal Service was not included in the audit plan as the 
service was covered by audits of other service areas.
 
RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Annual Plan for 2019/20, as set out in Annex A of the 
report, be approved. 
 

Page 52



Minutes\Audit and Standards Committee\25 March 2019

14/AS Appointment of a Pool of Independent Persons

The Committee considered a report setting out proposed arrangements for the 
appointment of Independent Persons for a four year period from May 2019 until May 
2023.

In 2016 the Council joined a consortium of Surrey local authorities which had appointed a 
pool of independent persons as required by the Localism Act 2011 to assist the Council.  
The pool arrangement had worked well and all involved were keen to continue the 
arrangement going forward.  

It was reported that four out of the five Independent Persons currently in post had 
expressed a wish to continue contributing to the pool when their appointments reached 
the end of their term of office in May 2019.  A recruitment process had been held to attract 
new applicants and it had subsequently been agreed that seven people, including four 
existing Independent Persons, be appointed to the Pool of Independent Persons for a four 
year period starting in May 2019.

RESOLVED that the Committee recommend to Full Council that the following persons be 
appointed to act as Independent Persons in accordance with the Localism Act until May 
2023:

 Roger Pett
 Vivienne Cameron
 Bernard Quoroll
 John Smith
 Liz Lawrence
 Bill Donnelly
 Paul Eaves

Chairman 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1. Council - 25 February 2019
	Council Minutes 25.2.19 exempt

	2. Council - 27 February 2019
	Council Minutes 27.2.19 exempt

	3. Executive - 25 February 2019
	Executive Minutes 25.2.19 exempt

	4. Executive - 19 March 2019
	5. Planning Applications Committee - 7 March 2019
	7. Performance & Finance Scrutiny Committee - 20 March 2019
	8. Audit & Standards Committee - 25 March 2019

